CARR-1491

William T. DeVries Farm

.Eldersburg (vicinity)

Summary:

Ludwick Little purchased this land in 1795 and 1796, and it remained in the Little
family until the Baltimore City Circuit Court ordered it sold in 1864. The fact that the
owner was not a Carroll County resident, and that no farm is indicated here on the 1862
Martenet Map of Carroll County suggests that it was a tenant farm, not owner occupied. It
certainly must have been improved, though, since the 86-acre tract sold in May 1865 for
$4,450, or almost $52 per acre. It was purchased by William T. DeVries of Baltimore
County. DeVries apparently built this house and moved to the farm. The 1877 atlas clearly
shows a building at this location. The house employs unusual features for Carroll County.
It has been altered on at least one occasion, when the superb marbleized slate mantels were
added to the existing fireplaces. These are also unusual for Carroll County farm houses.
The stair brackets are very similar to that found at the Jacob Leppo House in New Windsor
(CARR-272), built ¢.1863. The design source of this feature is as yet unknown.

DeVries seems to have owned a great deal of land in the area. He sold the farm to
Henry Newton DeVries, who may have been responsible for the alterations to the house, in
1890. By that time the farm had increased to 128 acres, and the sale price of $6,500, if
representative of the true value of the farm, meant the land was still worth about $51 per
acre. Henry DeVries sold the farm, now up to 227 acres, in 1932 to Stewart F. Hurline,
who retained it until 1987. The land has now been subdivided and homes are being
constructed on it. The house is currently being retained, but its ultimate disposition is in
question. :




Survey No. CARR-1491
MARYLAND INVENTORY OF

. . Magi No.
Maryland Historical Trust HISTORIC PROPERTIES
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _ yes _ mo
1 . Name {indicate preferred name)
historic William T. DeVries Farm
and/or common "Edgewood”
2. Location
street & number 800 Liberty Road ___not for publication
city, town Eldersburg X vicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county Carroll
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—_district- ——— public ____occupied —_agriculture — museum
_ Xbpuilding(s) _*_ private _X_ unoccupied ____ commercial __park _
——— Structure — both ____work in progress __ educational ___ private residence
___ site Public Acquisition Accessible —— entertainment religious
.. Object —in process ___yes: restricted _ government __ scientific
— being considered —__yes: unrestricted _industrial — transportation
X not applicable X no military —other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Warren J. Hook

street & number ' telephone no.:

city, town state and zip code

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Courthouse Annex liber LWS 1405
city, town Westminster state MD

6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys

date .—_federal ___state ____ county ___ local

,‘gsitory for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. CARR-1491

Condition Check one Check one

____excellent ___ deteriorated _X unaitered X__ original site

= gqod —__ruins ___ altered — moved date of move
— fair —_unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today. .

Summary:

The William T. DeVries Farm is located at 800 Liberty Road. The complex consists
of a frame house, a frame poultry house, a small frame shed, and a medium frame shed.
The house is a 2¥s-story, three-bay by one-bay frame structure, with a rubble stone
foundation, weatherboards with corner boards, and a gable roof of standing-seam metal. The
house faces southwest and has an ell on the northeast elevation. On the southeast elevation is
a deteriorated porch deck three bays wide. There is no evidence that it was ever roofed.
The first story has a center entrance with sidelights and a five-light transom. The door is
flanked on either side by a 6/6 sash, with jib doors. There is a central gabled wall dormer
with a 6/3 sash. The first story has a center-passage, single-pile plan with two rooms in the
ell. The passage has a dog-leg stair on the southeast wall. The southeast room has a
fireplace on the northwest wall with a marbleized slate mantel. On the northeast wall is a
doorway to an enclosed stair passage that runs northwest-southeast. The center room
northeast wall has a fireplace with a marbleized slate mantel. The northeast room has a
large, simple wood mantel on the southwest wall with a winder stair in the west corner. The
second story has the same floor plan as the first story. The stairs are open to the attic.

Contributing Resources: 4

The William T. DeVries Farm is located at 800 Liberty Road, on the northeast side
of the road, about 1% miles northwest of Eldersburg in southeast Carroll County, Maryland.
The complex consists of a frame house, a frame poultry house, a small frame shed, and a
medium frame shed. The house sits on a slight rise. The land falls away gently on all sides
except the northwest, which has a rather steep drop.

The house is a 2Vz-story, three-bay by one-bay frame structure, with a rubble stone
foundation, weatherboards with corner boards, and a gable roof of standing-seam metal with
a northwest-to-southeast ridge. The house faces southwest and has an ell on the northeast
elevation. The ell has a gable roof of standing-seam metal with a. northeast-to-southwest
ridge. On the southeast elevation is a deteriorated porch deck three bays wide. It is
supported by four stone walls that run northeast to southwest. There is no evidence that it
was ever roofed. The first story has a center entrance with one light over two panels in the
door. There are sidelights and a five-light transom. The door is flanked on either side by a
6/6 sash, with two one-panel jib doors below each sash, and with exterior blinds with one
panel in the bottom of each. The house sill is exposed and is hewn. The second story has
three 6/6 sash with blinds. There is a wood ‘box cornice and a central gabled wall dormer
with a 6/3 sash. The top sash is gabled. There is an interior brick chimney with a smoke
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hood on either side of the center bay.

The northwest elevation is built all in one plane. It is three bays, with a corner board
between the north and the center bays. The first story has a typical 6/6 sash to the north, a
closed-up window opening, a 6/6 sash, a closed-up window opening, and a 6/6 sash. The
second story has, from north to west, two 6/6 sash, a corner board, three low closed-up
openings, the top of the center one having a 6/6 sash, and a 6/6 sash in the west bay. A
central gabled wall dormer covers part of the north and center bays. The dormer has a
lancet shaped 2/2 sash. The corner board does not extend up into the dormer. The gable
end of the main block has a four-light sash.

The northeast elevation is two bays, with a corner board between the pantry siding on
the east and the ell siding to the north. The first story has no opening in the east or pantry
bay. There is a four-panel door just north of the corner board and a typical 6/6 sash
centered on the ell. The second story has a typical 6/6 sash in the center, and the gable end
has a 6/3 sash. There is a one-story porch across the whole northeast elevation, set on three
rubble stone walls running northeast to southwest. It has a shed roof of standing-seam metal,
and two of its three boxed posts survive. There is an interior brick chimney between the
northeast and center bays.

The southeast elevation of the ell is five bays. The first story has, from south to east,
a four-panel door with a two-light transom, a typical 6/6 sash, a four-panel door where the
corner board is, a typical 6/6 sash, and a projecting pantry with a typical 6/6 sash. The
second story has a door with four lights over two panels, then evidence of a low window that
has been infilled and is across from the center of the three infilled windows on the northwest
elevation. Next comes a typical 6/6 sash, then a four-panel door that has a corner board
above it, then a typical 6/6 sash which appears to have been moved two feet to the south.
The pantry has a typical 6/6 sash.

The southwest elevation of the pantry has no opening on the first story, and has a
four-panel door on the second story. The northeast elevation of the main block, on the first
story, has a typical 6/6 sash, and a door with one light over two panels. The second story is
identical to the first story. The ell is filled with a two-story porch that runs along the
northeast side of the main block and the southeast side of the ell. It has four square posts on
the first and second stories, and four horizontal rails between these posts on the second story
only. The southeast elevation of the main block has a typical 6/6 sash on the first and
second stories. The gable end has a four-light casement like that on the northwest.

The main block of the house had a crawl space only, originally, though it is now
partly excavated and has %-round joists and joists that are hewn on top and bottom. There
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is a cellar under the center ell room that appears original, and the foundation walls appear to
be built at the same time as the main block, as several stones span both walls. The joists are
identical to the main block. Under the northeastern-most room of the ell the cellar has %-
round log joists. There is no obvious break in the northwest wall between the center and
northeast cellars.

The first story has a center-passage, single-pile plan with two rooms in the ell. The
passage has a dog leg stair on the southeast wall, with an open stringer, a turned walnut
newel, a moulded walnut handrail, turned balusters, and sawn brackets. The doors
throughout the house have four panels. The passage is completely open beneath the
staircase.

The southeast room has a fireplace on the northwest wall with a marbleized slate
mantel painted black with white veining. It has a semi-circular arch, and grooves cut in the
spandrels and the center cartouche. This is not the original mantel, but is a later addition
and alteration as the firebox has a plaster surround and then a veneer of brick on the outside
of it, to which the mantel is attached.

The northwest room has a central fireplace on the southeast wall that is closed off
with a marbleized slate cover that matches the marbleized slate mantel. This mantel has a
semicircular arch very similar to that in the southeast room, but has a simpler cartouche.
The mantel is painted a reddish-brown with white veining. East of the mantel is a typical
door leading to a large closet. On the northeast wall is a doorway to an enclosed stair
passage that runs northwest-southeast. The stair has a winder at the top and a small landing
at the bottom, with a door on the southeast to the exterior. There is also a door on the
northeast that leads to the center room.

The center room has a chairrail. The southwest wall has a typical door leading to a
closet beneath the rear stairs. The northeast wall has a fireplace that is flush with the wall
and projects out into the northeast room. It has a marbleized slate mantel with three types of
painting. It is semicircular arched, and has a marbleized slate cover of reddish brown with
white veining. The spandrels have black bands with a red and white pattern inside them.
The simple cartouche is painted the same way, and the narrow shallow grooves have gold
paint in them. East of the mantel is a typical four-panel door to the northeast room.:

The northeast room has a large, simple wood mantel on the southwest wall, with new
brick infill in the fireplace. There is a winder stair in the west corner that has a vertical-
board door and a small closet with a board door under the stairs. The southeast side of the
fireplace has a closet set high on the wall.
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The second story has the same floor plan as the first story. The stairs are open to the
attic and contain the same details as on the first story. There is very low clearance on the
landing.

The southeast chamber has a wood mantel on the northwest wall that has pilaster
strips and a plain frieze. It was never a fireplace. In front of it is a radiator. To the north
of it is a four-panel door leading to a closet. The closet extends behind at least one-third of
the mantel. The northwest chamber is identical to the southeast chamber, with the same
mantel, radiator, and closet all located on the southeast wall. The northeast wall has a
typical door leading to the cross passage.

The cross passage has three horizontal rails around the stairs, and a door on the
southeast that leads to the porch. There is a typical four-panel door on the northeast wall,
set to the north, that leads to the center chamber. The northeast chamber is divided in two
by a wall running northwest-southeast that appears to be a later alteration. The southwest
half has a winder stair in the west corner, with an enclosed passage. This division appears
to be original. The northwest wall has a radiator marked "PAT.FEB.23.04." There is also
a claw-foot tub in the southwest half of the northeast chamber, and there was formerly a
pedestal sink.

The second-story room above the pantry is accessible only from a door from the
porch. It has circular-sawn lath with wire nails, and plaster.

The attic has plastered walls and ceiling. Some of the flooring appears to be reused
lumber. There are attic rooms on the northwest and southeast that have vertical-board doors.
There is a four-panel door stored in the attic that has both sides grained. The rails and stiles
appear to imitate oak, while the fields appear to be grained to imitate a walnut burl. The
center attic appears to have always been finished and has a small radiator on the northeast
wall. The northeast attic formerly had a radiator on the northeast wall. The rafters are 2 x
4’s, with a birdsmouth cut at the rafter foot that laps over a false plate. The rafters in the
northwest attic room are of larger dimension. This attic room also was apparently finished
from the beginning.

Just northeast of the northeast porch is a well that now has a concrete pad around it
and a small wooden housing on the top for pump equipment.

About 2 feet northwest of the well is a poultry house with a rubble stone foundation,
beaded-edge-and-center vertical-board siding, and a gable roof of asphalt shingles with a
northeast to southwest ridge. The southeast elevation has a window opening and a small
door opening below it. The southwest elevation has a four-panel door. The northwest




8. Significance Survey No. CARR-1491

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ____landscape architecture ____ religion
~- 14001499 ____ archeology-historic —conservation — law —_'science
1500-1599 ____ agriculture —__economics — literature — sculpture
— 1600-1699 _< _architecture — education — military —_social/
— 1700-1799 _ art — engineering —_ music humanitarian
—221800-1899 __ commerce —— expioration/settlement ____ philosophy —theater
— 1900~ — communications . — industry — politics/government  ____ transportation
— invention —_other (specify)
Specific dates Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _B XC _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _A B _C _ D _E _F _ G
Level of Significance: _ national __state Xlocal

Prepare both a sxjmmary baragraph of significance and a geﬂ@ral statement of history and
support.

Geographic Organization: Piedmont

Chronological/Development Period: Agriculture-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870;
Industrial/Urban Deminance A.D. 1870-1930

Historic Period Themes: Agriculture, Architecture

Resource Types: Small family farm, Rural vernacular

Ludwick Little purchased this land in 1795 and 1796, and it remained in the Little
family until the Baltimore City Circuit Court ordered it sold in 1864. The fact that the
owner was not a Carroll County resident, and that no farm is indicated here on the 1862
Martenet Map of Carroll County suggests that it was a tenant farm, not owner occupied. It
certainly must have been improved, though, since the 86-acre tract sold in May 1865 for
$4,450, or almost $52 per acre. It was purchased by William T. DeVries of Baltimore
County. DeVries apparently built this house and moved to the farm. The 1877 atlas clearly
shows a building at this location. The house employs unusual features for Carroll County.
It has been altered on at least one occasion, when the superb marbleized slate mantels were
added to the existing fireplaces. These are also unusual for Carroll County farm houses.
The stair brackets are very similar to that found at the Jacob Leppo House in New Windsor
(CARR-272), built ¢.1863. The design source of this feature is as yet unknown.

e

DeVries seems to have owned a great deal of land in the area. He sold the farm to
Henry Newton DeVries, who may have been responsible for the alterations to the house, in
1890. By that time the farm had increased to 128 acres, and the sale price of $6,500, if
representative of the true value of the farm, meant the land was still worth about $51 per
acre. Henry DeVries sold the farm, now up to 227 acres, in 1932 to Stewart F. Hurline,
who retained it until 1987. The land has now been subdivided and homes are being
constructed on it. The house is currently being retained, but its ultimate disposition is in
question,

KS/Ic:12-20-95: CARR1491 .sig
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code
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11. Form Prepared By

nameftitte Kenneth M. Short, Historic Planner

organization Carroll County Planning

date January 24, 1996

street & number 225 North Center Street

telephone (410) 857-2145

city or town Westminster

state MD

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.
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CARR-1491
William T. DeVries Farm
800 Liberty Road

CHAIN OF TITLE

Warren J. Hook, Prince Warren J. Hook ? 10-26-1992 LWS 1405 639 | Deed fee 227+ acre - 87+
personal rep. of Harriet George’s ~ simple acre - 2+ acre
H. Hook County ' interest $0
Stewart F. Hurline & ? Harriet H. Hook ? 6-9-1987 LWS 1024 418 | Deed fee $0, 227+ acres -
Harriet H. Hook, - simple 87+ acres - 2+
personal reps. & trustees acres
Stewart F. & Virginia Carroll Stewart F. & Carroll 8-6-1974 CCC 576 352 | Deed fee $10.00, 227 - 87
B. Hurline (wife) Virginia B. Hurline simple
(wife)
Charles P. Geiman Carroll Stewart F. & ? 9-1-1945 EAS 187 357 | Deed fee $1.00, 227 acres
Virginia B. Hurline simple - 87 acres
(wife)
Stewart F. & Virginia Carroll Charles P. Geiman | Carroll 9-1-1945 EAS 187 356 | Deed fee $1.00, 227 acres
B. Hurline (wife) simple - 87 acres
Henry Newton DeVries, Carroll Stewart F. Hurline Baltimore 4-29-1932 EMM 157 221 | Deed fee $10.00, 227
widower County simple acres
(1) 128 acres - 7
acres (life estate)
(2) 7 acres (see
1)
(3) 1 acre
(4) 102 acres
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CARR-1491
William T. DeVries Farm
800 Liberty Road

CHAIN OF TITLE

William T. & Anna J. Carroll Henry Newton 3-7-1890
DeVries (wife) DeVries

WNM 71

21

Deed fee
simple

$6,500, 128
acres

Good
Neighborhood,
Addition to
Perserverance,
Everett’s
Progress
Enlarged

minus 7 acres
held as life estate
by grantors, on
west side of this
land - adjoins J.
Oliver Wadlow’s
Orchard enclosed
by paling fence
also used for
small fruits [no
previous
reference) (1)




CARR-1491
William T. DeVries Farm
800 Liberty Road

CHAIN OF TITLE

William Pinckney Whyte | Baltimore William T. Baltimore 8-8-1865 WAMcK 32 303 | Deed Baltimore City

& William A. Fisher County DeVries County Circuit Court 9-
9-1864, Samuel
E. Little v,
William Stewart
Little, et al, sold
5-10-1865,
$4,450, 86 acres,
lot 1 of plat - in

village of
Freedom, Good
Neighborhood,
Addition to
Perserverance,
Everett’s
Progress
Enlarged
Philip Lavely Ludwick Little 1-12-1795 Balto. Co. 323
WG 22
Absolom Shipley Ludwick Little 3-4-1796 Balto. Co. 532
' WG UU

KS/1c:12-20-95:1491titl. ks
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